
 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Regular Meeting 

  September 13, 2016 

 

Present:  Myles Mickle, Steve Adams, Evelyn Weeks, Stefan Golec, Colin James 

 

Also Present:  Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk; Ron Lake, Fire/Police Chief; Rob Wheeler, 

Wastewater Chief; Ray Perry, Water Chief; Steve Cenate, Deputy Fire Chief; Dave Bellimer, 

Firefighter/Paramedic; Jenn Moore, Southern Vermont Running; Deborah Wright 

 

Press:  Kevin O’Connor, FACT8; Joel Slutsky, The Shopper; Tory Jones Bonenfant, Eagle 

Times 

 

Call to Order:   Meeting was called to order at 6:34 p.m. by President Myles Mickle. 

 

Additions to the Agenda for Routine Administrative Matters and/or Pressing Matters that will 

require ratification at a future meeting:   

 Adams would like the Trustees to consider installing American flags around the Village and 

there is someone willing to make a donation.  Bennett informed the Board that the 

Selectboard had discussed this at a recent meeting also and will find out who was looking 

into it. 

 James requested that agenda item #5 be moved to #3 as Chief Lake would be addressing 

both. Mickle stated that Lake had already requested this and this will be done. 

 Mickle stated that he will not be present at the next meeting. 

 

Approve Minutes of August 9, 2016:  Stefan Golec made the motion to approve the minutes of 

August 9, 2016 as printed.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: (3 minutes per person):  None 

 

Manager’s Report: None, Municipal Manager is on vacation. 

 

Agenda: 

1. Southern Vermont Running 

 a) Request to waive Open Bottle Ordinance – October 1: Stefan Golec made the motion that 

the Trustees waive the Open Bottle Ordinance for the October 1 Southern Vermont 

Running event.  Motion was seconded by Steve Adams.  Motion passed.  Jenn Moore from 

Southern Vermont Running was present and thanked the Board for the waiver. 

 

2. Parking Enforcement Update:  Chief Ron Lake was present and informed the Board that an 

officer has been hired to do parking enforcement in the entire Village.  Lake stated that this 

began on August 29 and to date 66 tickets have been issued.  Lake noted that there are 

considerably less vehicles in the Square so this seems to be working.  In addition, Lake stated 

that a “boot list” will be developed, and those ignoring or refusing to pay tickets will be 

booted.  Weeks asked what the cost of this effort would be.  Lake stated it is the salary of the 

officer for 40 hours and he believes there is a line item in the budget of $20,000 for parking 

enforcement.  Mickle stated that while there seemed to be a need for this service but he  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

September 13, 2016 – Page 2 

 

would like it to have the least impact as possible on the taxpayers.  Lake noted that the plan is 

to keep this program in place through December 2016 and will re-evaluate the program at 

that time.  Deborah Wright noted that the Municipal Manager did state at a previous meeting 

that this is not budgeted and asked that the Trustees keep a careful eye on the program and 

how much revenue we see, if tickets are being paid, etc.  Wright also asked that Town Hall 

and Municipal employees consider finding alternative places to park also noting that the 

Town had reduced the parking spaces by 7 spaces which are vital and if one was to go out 

into the Square now you would have difficulty finding a parking space and will find 

municipal vehicles that are not parked in the municipal lots.  Wright stated that this detracts 

from tourism, people coming to the movies, and people shopping.  Wright noted that she has 

heard complaints from businesses of not having enough parking spaces but at the same time 

if tickets are being put on every car, when it is known that certain people continue to “hog” 

the parking spots, but we are not educating them to have better parking habits.   Lake did 

note that this program is not a money maker by any means.    

 

3. Fire Department 

 a) BF Fire Operational Letter of Agreement with Alstead Ambulance Service:  Lake 

explained to the Board that the Town of Alstead, New Hampshire has approached the 

Bellows Falls Fire Department requesting an agreement to allow the paramedic from the 

Bellows Falls Fire Department to assist them when needed.  Lake introduced Dave 

Bellimer, who is a paramedic, and is a full time firefighter on the BFFD.  Lake stated that 

as of January 2016, the BFFD changed its status from basic response to paramedic level.  

This status allows Bellimer to perform paramedic duties when necessary.  Lake also 

noted that Alstead has offered a $250 fee for each time this service is utilized.  Weeks 

asked if the Village had backup if Bellimer was to go to Alstead.  Lake stated that we do 

not.  Lake stated that Bellimer would be added to the list of available paramedics along 

with those from Deluzio Ambulance out of Keene and Golden Cross Ambulance here.  

Golec asked if there was a cost comparison between what Alstead was offering and what 

Deluzio or Golden Cross charges for paramedic services.  Bellimer stated that he could 

get this information.  Adams stated that the $250 seems “light” when considering the loss 

of time and the service performed.  After discussion Lake & Bellimer will get further 

information on costs, vehicle usage, time away, and what part of Alstead he would cover 

and come back to the Board with this information at the next meeting. 

 

 b) Award bid for SCBA: Deputy Chief Cenate stated that the grant funding for this purchase 

is $150,000 with a 5% Village match.  Two bids were received for 20 SCBA’s and the 

low bidder was Fire Tech & Safety of New England with a bid of $121,900.  Cenate then 

noted that an amendment can be submitted on the grant to use the balance of the grant for 

other equipment.  Stefan Golec made the motion to award the bid for 20 self-contained 

breathing apparatus units to Fire Tech & Safety of New England for a cost of $121,900 

and authorize the Municipal Manager to sign any documents necessary.  Motion was 

seconded by Colin James.  Motion passed.   

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

September 13, 2016 – Page 3 

 

4. Water Department – Chief Operator Ray Perry was present to speak to the below items.   

 

 a) Request replacement of hand-held meter readers:  Perry noted that a memo was included 

in the Board packets with a recommendation from the Manager and from the Water 

Department.  Perry noted that the current units are 10 years old and are getting harder and 

harder to service.  Perry stated that the last 3 readings have run into considerable 

problems with downloading the information.  A quote was received from EJ Prescott for 

replacement at a cost of $17,259.22.  A quote was also received for upgrading the units of 

$1,702.00 but Perry noted that this will most likely not even last for one year.  Perry 

stated that the cost of these units will be split with the Wastewater Department.  Stefan 

Golec made the motion to purchase the complete units from EJ Prescott at a cost of 

$17,259.22 and authorize the Municipal Manager to sign any and all documents for this 

purchase.  Motion was seconded by Colin James.  Motion passed. 

 

 b) Water Project Update:   

 King/Lockwood/Pleasant:  Perry reported that this project is 90% complete and 

sidewalks are being completed in the next few days.   

 Route 5 North Pipe Bursting:  Temporary pipe has been installed under the Joy Wah 

and will be installed under the road for Webb Terrace tomorrow.  Pipe bursting is 

scheduled to start on Monday, 9/19 with a completion date the week of November 28.  

Perry also informed the Board that there will be a day scheduled for observation of 

the project if anyone is interested as we are the first community in the State of 

Vermont to do this process. 

 Chase/Oak/Hadley:  Has not gone out to bid yet. 

 

Adams stated that he had seen the sidewalks recently installed on Pleasant Street noting 

that these were asphalt and not concrete.  Perry stated that this was part of the contract.  

Adams asked if this was a cost to the Water Department.  Perry stated that it was.  Adams 

stated that the sidewalks and roads were Town issues and that the Village should not be 

paying for these and would like to have a conversation with the Selectboard.  Adams also 

noted that he was told that there is not a significant difference between the cost of asphalt 

and concrete.  Perry noted that the Board had elected to go with asphalt on the outlying 

sidewalks and remain concrete on the major sidewalks in the Village. This item will be 

put on the next Joint Board agenda for discussion.   

 

5. Wastewater Department Update:  Chief Operator Rob Wheeler was present to update the 

Board on the Wastewater project.  Wheeler stated that the project was moving along and the 

buildings should be closed in prior to winter.  The generators for the pump stations are 

expected next week and will be stored at the Water Plant.  James asked if work would 

continue through the winter.  Wheeler stated that it would.   

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

September 13, 2016 – Page 4 

 

 Golec asked about the Saxtons River plant upgrade.  Wheeler stated that this also is moving 

forward and plans are in the electrical stage now.  It is hoped to go out to bid this winter for a 

spring 2017 start. 

 

6. Finance Office  

 a) FY2016 & FY2017 YTD Budget Status:  Bennett noted that Stearns had included notes 

for the Board on the budget pages and if the Board members had any questions they 

could email the Manager directly, or could email her and she would get this to the 

Manager.  Adams asked about the delinquent taxes on certain properties such as the Hetty 

Green Motel. Bennett stated that she believed this was in bankruptcy.  Bennett did note 

that the tax sale would be held on September 23 and there are quite a few properties still 

on the list. 

 

Overtime & Comp Time Reports:  Adams stated that he had a concern about the Police 

Department’s overtime noting that one officer had 70 hours of overtime in one week’s time.  

Adams stated that he understood that shifts need to be covered and there are issues that come up 

but he would like to see a comparison over 1 and 2 years and wondered if adding an additional 

officer would be the way to go.  Bennett will give this request to Chief Lake and the Board asked 

that he attend the next meeting to discuss this further. 

 

Review Fire Dept & Police Dept Call Logs:  No comments or concerns. 

 

Review Task List:   

 Unsafe Buildings – Weeks asked about the status of the YMCA building and the Board 

discussed this briefly.  Mickle stated that a considerable amount of capital is needed to repair 

this building.  Weeks will investigate this further. 

 

Review Agenda Items for Next Regular Trustees Meeting – September 27, 2016:   

 Follow up on request from Alstead for paramedic 

 Statistics on overtime for Police Department 

 

Review Agenda Items for Joint Board Meeting – November 29, 2016: 

 Sidewalk maintenance & replacement 

 Manager Review Committee Report 

 

Approve Orders, Bills and Warrants: Colin James made the motion to approve the orders, bills 

and warrants as presented.  Motion was seconded by Stefan Golec.  Motion passed. 

 

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

September 13, 2016 – Page 5 

 

Other Business: 

 James reported that the Manager Review Committee had met last night.  Peter Golec was 

elected chair; James as vice-chair; and Adams as clerk.  Selectboard member Josh Hearne 

was also present.  The Committee reviewed the information that had been provided and have 

narrowed the form down to 2 examples.  Adams stated that it is the intent to take the best 

from both of these examples and combine them into one form. 

 Wright noted that the Village has agreements with the Town to maintain the roads and 

sidewalks and these were made with the expectation of a level of service that is not 

happening.  Wright stated that the Trustees should make their concerns known to the Town 

Selectboard.  Golec stated that the Trustees have done their best with regards to sidewalks 

and noted that this is a significant expense and that the cost involved should be considered.  

Adams stated again that he was told the cost difference for asphalt vs. concrete was not 

significant and the sidewalks should be uniform throughout the Village.  Adams also stated 

that he would like to see employees dedicated to the Village to do maintenance on sidewalks.  

This item is being put on the next Joint Board agenda. 

 

 

Executive Session:  None was necessary. 

 

Adjourn: Stefan Golec made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 p.m.  Motion was 

seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

 

 

      Attest:         

       Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk 


